1954

Salt Lake City v. Utah Lake Farmers Association : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The points presented by this appeal involve one of the major water systems in the State of Utah, comprising Utah Lake, Jordan River and facilities for the diversion of water from said lake and river into canals from which it is distributed for irrigation, domestic, industrial and other beneficial uses.

Geography

Utah Lake is a natural body of water lying in western Utah County and having a surface area, at compromise elevation (a point later defined herein) of approximately 93,000 acres. This lake is formed by the inflow of streams such as the Provo River, the Spanish Fork River and several smaller streams draining into it from the Wasatch Mountains to the east. The water is impounded in the lake because of the restricted outlet. The Jordan River at the north end of the lake is the only natural outlet of the lake and carries the overflow of Utah Lake down its channel to the Great Salt Lake. To the north of Utah Lake and adjacent to the Jordan River, there lies sixty or seventy thousand acres of fertile lands which require irrigation in order to become agriculturally productive. Salt Lake City lies north of Utah Lake and easterly from the Jordan River and requires water for culinary, domestic and industrial purposes.

Development of Rights to Use of Waters of Utah Lake and Jordan River

During the period between 1872 and 1883, each of the plaintiffs constructed a canal from the Jordan River at

points near the boundary line between Salt Lake County and Utah County at an aggregate cost of \$805,000.00 (R. 57-60). In 1872, Salt Lake County constructed a dam in the Jordan River, near the boundary line between Salt Lake County and Utah County for the purpose of diverting the water of Jordan River from its natural channel and causing the same to flow through the said several canals of plaintiffs for the uses and purposes aforesaid. This dam has been referred to as the "Old Dam" or "Turner Dam." Subsequent to its erection, title to said dam was transferred to plaintiffs. (R. 60-61).

The capacity of said several canals and the quantities of water to which plaintiffs were adjudged the right to use, subject to prior rights, by decree entered in the District Court of Salt Lake County (commonly known as the "Morse Decree"), are as follows:

Utah & Salt Lake Canal Company	246 second feet
East Jordan Irrigation Co.	170 second feet
Salt Lake City	150 second feet
South Jordan Canal Co.	142 second feet
North Jordan Canal Co.	120 second feet
<hr/>	
Total	828 second feet

During the years 1889 and 1890, plaintiffs constructed above the "Old Dam," a dam which was commonly known as the "Indian Ford Dam," or "New Dam." Except for the sill of the Indian Ford Dam, neither it nor the Old Dam are now in existence. The location of said canals and diversion and measuring devices is shown on a map of the Engineering Department of Salt Lake City (R. 216).

Utah Lake fluctuates in its elevation and thereby in its water productivity from year to year and from time to time within each year, dependent upon the precipitation falling upon the watersheds tributary to the lake (R. 216). In order to conserve and equalize the outflow of Utah Lake, impounding dams were installed in the channel of Jordan River to retard the outflow from the lake during the non-irrigation season and thereby to convert Utah Lake from a natural reservoir to a natural and artificial reservoir. Just to the extent that the natural outflow of the lake was retarded, the level of the lake was artificially raised and the lands along the shore of the lake were to that extent inundated. This situation inevitably resulted in a controversy between those who were impounding the water and the owners of the lands along the shores of the lake. The impounding of the waters of Utah Lake prevented their wasting into Great Salt Lake during the nonirrigation season and thereby provided a more adequate water supply for the valuable agricultural lands in Salt Lake County, but this, in turn, inundated to some extent agricultural lands in Utah County. This provoked a real controversy involving very substantial rights.

In 1884, the controversy was referred to arbitrators, who were prominent citizens of Salt Lake and Utah Counties. The substance of the decision arrived at by the arbitrators was incorporated in an agreement which was entered into in the year 1885 between plaintiffs and owners of lands bordering Utah Lake, which agreement has been known through the years as "Compromise Agreement" (R. 12-53).

Compromise Agreement

Compromise Agreement which is pleaded in full and attached to plaintiffs' complaint has never been modified and is still in full force and effect (R. 91, 117). Said controversy, arising from the plaintiffs' holding back and storing the waters of Utah Lake and thereby flooding lands lying adjacent thereto, was fully settled by Compromise Agreement. Under its terms, the plaintiffs paid an agreed and substantial sum to the landowners in Utah County, in consideration of which said landowners granted to plaintiffs a perpetual easement to flood the lands of said landowners, free from liability or damage, to the extent that the storage of water in said lake raised the level thereof to a point known as "Compromise Point." Compromise Agreement also provides for the election annually by the parties thereto of a board of five persons known as the "Utah Lake Commission," under whose directions the rights granted by said agreement should be exercised by plaintiffs. For such purpose, said agreement constitutes said board the agent of the parties thereto. (Said commission is also known as "Utah Lake and Jordan Dam Commission.")

The Colladge Case

Subsequent to the execution of Compromise Agreement, a controversy developed involving the interpretation of the terms of the agreement and the rights of the parties thereunder. On or about March 31, 1894, plaintiffs commenced an action in the District Court for the First Judicial District, Utah Territory, against the owners of land bordering Utah Lake to establish Compromise Point as describ-

ed in Compromise Agreement, and to have determined the extent to which the easement granted thereunder permitted the flooding of lands bordering Utah Lake by the holding back and impounding of the waters of said lake. A judgment and Decree was entered in said action on January 3, 1896, which was reviewed by this court. *Salt Lake City v. Colladge*, 13 Utah 522, 45 P. 891. On November 5, 1896, Judge A. C. Hatch, of said district court, made and entered corrected Findings of Fact and Judgment and Decree in accordance with the Supreme Court's decision (R. 8, 9, 54-78, 86, 111).

Compromise Point is established by the decree entered in the Colladge Case as follows:

“It is therefore Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed, that the plaintiffs have the right to maintain the waters of Utah Lake at an elevation four feet six inches (4 ft. 6 in.) below the top of the stone monument near the head of Jordan River which was established by the Utah Lake Commission in 1885, said elevation being the point referred to in the contract set out in the findings of fact herein as ‘three feet three and one-half inches (3 ft. 3½ in.) above the point heretofore established and recognized as low water mark in said lake.’

“It is further Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed that a survey shall be made and a permanent monument shall hereafter be established and maintained at the expense of the plaintiffs in said Utah Lake at a point to be hereafter agreed upon by the parties hereto or fixed by the court, between a point one mile north of Provo River and a point five miles south of the mouth of said river, where it will be least subject to temporary fluctuations of the height of the water by winds or the influx of Spanish Fork

and Provo Rivers, to perpetuate said agreed elevation, and that said monument when so established, shall be maintained as the controlling evidence of the elevation at which the water of said lake is authorized to be maintained by the plaintiffs under said contract" (R. 76).

Pursuant to the above provision of said decree, a survey was made by A. F. Doremus and Charles DeMoisey for the purpose of establishing a permanent monument to perpetuate Compromise Point. Such monument was erected on an island in said lake known as Snail Island. Some years prior to the present action, the Snail Island Monument was destroyed as a result of erosion, washing of the waves, ice and other causes (R. 9, 86, 112).

With respect to the Utah Lake Commission created by Compromise Agreement, Justice Bartch, speaking for the Court in the Colladge Case, said:

"For the purpose of carrying the agreement into effect, provision was made for the appointment of a commission, who were constituted the agents of both parties to the contract, and, among other things, were empowered to determine and direct when and to what extent obstructions might be placed into the waterway of the dam, not to exceed the highest elevation specified in the contract."

The Court then proceeds to make a very significant construction of Compromise Agreement as to the purpose, status and powers of the Utah Lake Commission. Inter alia the court holds:

"The remaining material question in this case is whether the Utah Lake commissioners have auth-

ority, under the contract, to permit the appellants to place additional obstructions in the dam, between October 1st, in any year, and March 15th following, if such obstructions have been ordered out and removed after the 1st day of October. The trial court decided this question in the negative, as appears from the clause of the decree which reads as follows: 'If the said commissioners order the removal of the planks or other obstructions after the 1st day of October in any year, the plaintiffs shall not have leave to replace the same until the 15th day of March of the following year, nor at that time, unless the commissioners shall so decide.' The appellants claim that this is the result of an erroneous construction of the contract, and is not in harmony with the intent of the parties to it, and that the intention of the parties in creating the commission was to give it all the power necessary to enable it to carry the contract into effect according to its true intent and meaning. The commission was created 'for the purpose of better carrying' the contract into effect, and the contract, so far as material here, provides as follows: 'The said persons shall constitute a board, and are hereby empowered, as the legally constituted agents of the parties hereto, to determine and direct when and to what extent obstructions may be placed in the said waterway of the dam for the purpose of storing the lake with water for future use, not to exceed the highest elevation hereinbefore specified; provided, that if in any year, on or after the 15th day of March, it shall be ascertained by said board that the fall of snow during the past winter has been light, and if the said board are of the opinion that the water of Utah Lake will probably not rise to the highest level hereinbefore mentioned, then the said board shall permit the said parties of the second part to raise said dam to a height to be fixed by said board, which

shall cause the water of said lake to rise to said level; and, if it shall be ascertained by experience and observation that the said parties of the second part can obtain all the water necessary for irrigation purposes by keeping the waterway of the dam open until the waters of Utah Lake shall have receded below the highest level mentioned, then the said board shall require the waterway to be kept open until the water recedes to such level as the board shall deem sufficient to supply the said parties of the second part with water; and provided, further, that when at any time in each year, to be fixed by said board, the high water of Utah Lake shall have receded to the highest elevation above herein specified, the parties of the second part shall have the right, without hindrance from any person or persons, to cause the waters of said Utah Lake to be held back by regulating said dam not to exceed the elevation above mentioned, and use the said water as they may desire until such date, on or after the 1st day of October, as said board shall decide, at which date the said parties of the second part shall open the entire waterway of said dam (excepting the uprights) down to the sill or base thereof, and permit the said waters to run free.' Under this provision of the contract, it is insisted by the respondents that, if the additional obstructions are ordered removed by the commission after the 1st day of October in any year, they cannot be replaced until after the 15th day of March next following. This would imply that, if they were not ordered removed, they might remain in the dam during the entire winter. We do not think such a construction is warranted by the language employed, nor by the purpose and object for which the commission was created. While the plaintiffs are not permitted to replace the obstructions, of their own motion, after they have been ordered out, still the

commission may order them replaced at any time when the circumstances and condition of the lake warrant the obstructing of the flow of the water, so as to comply with the terms of the contract. The purpose and duty of the commission are to watch the condition of the lake, and guard the interests of both parties to the contract. In the absence of express words to that effect, we do not feel warranted to adopt a construction which would empower the commission to permit the planks to remain in the dam from October 1st to March 15th, but prohibit them from replacing them before March 15th, if, for any purpose, they should order them to be removed after the 1st of October; nor, after a careful consideration of the entire contract, are we able to ascertain any good reason why such a construction should be adopted; nor is there anything to indicate that such was the intention of the parties at the time of making the contract. We conclude that the appellants' contention as to this point must also be sustained, and that the finding of facts and decree, in relation to this question, must be modified so as to authorize the commission to replace additional obstructions in the waterway of the dam before the 15th day of March in any year, even if they were taken out after the 1st day of October."

The "Morse Decree"

Subsequent to the decision in the Colladge Case, a controversy arose involving the water rights of the users in Salt Lake County of the water of Utah Lake and Jordan River. This resulted in the filing of three actions in the District Court of Salt Lake County, the parties to which were the numerous claimants to the use of said waters. The three causes were consolidated and tried together by Honor-

able C. W. Morse, Judge of said court, who on July 15, 1901, made and entered the Judgment and Decree of the court and thereafter and in connection therewith made and entered certain supplemental decrees and orders. Said decrees and orders, which are commonly referred to as the "Morse Decree," have become historic in the settlement and administration of the water rights involved. For the convenience of this court in referring thereto, we submit herewith copies of said decrees and orders. In the year 1902, the Morse Decree was reviewed and affirmed by this court. *Salt Lake City, et al. v. Salt Lake City Water and Electric Power Co. et al.*, 24 Utah 249, 67 P. 672.

The District Court of Salt Lake County retained original jurisdiction of said cause, the subject matter thereof, and the parties thereto for the purpose of all necessary supplementary orders and decrees which might be required to make effectual the rights awarded and preserved by said decree. For such purpose, the court appointed a commissioner at a certain monthly salary, "to superintend and direct the measurement and division of all the water, distributed by this Decree in accordance therewith; to direct, supervise and inspect all mains and appliances for the diversion, conveyance, and use of the same, and to report from time to time to the court, any violation of the provisions of this Decree." Since the entry of the Morse Decree, the diversion and distribution of the waters of Utah Lake and Jordan River have been continuously under the exclusive control of a commissioner appointed by the District Court of Salt Lake County or a water commissioner appointed by the State Engineer of the State of Utah as provided by Chapter 5, Title 73, Utah Code Annotated 1953.

It is obvious that the fluctuating natural flow of Jordan River was not adequate each year to satisfy the requirements of the plaintiffs. Plaintiffs, in order to make available a regular and dependable supply of water, undertook, prior to 1906, to, and did, install, a number of pumps at the mouth of the Jordan River, designed to deliver into the channel of the Jordan River a quantity of water greatly in excess of the amount that would flow by gravity into the channel of the river when the level of the lake was at or below Compromise Point. The effect of the pumping of such excess quantities of water was to lower the level of Utah Lake; therefore, the level of the lake has at all times since 1907, been lower than it would have been except for said pumping.

*Diversion Works and Measuring Devices
at Jordan Narrows*

The Morse Decree, among other things, directed that the parties thereto, under the direction and supervision of a commissioner appointed by the court, construct and maintain proper facilities for measuring and distributing the waters awarded under said decree. Subsequently, upon a hearing involving the foregoing provision of said decree, Judge Morse of the District Court of Salt Lake County appointed a Board of Engineers, which included the court commissioner, to examine and make recommendations as to what facilities were necessary to distribute the waters of said lake and river in accordance with said decree. Such recommendations were duly made, and the court, under its retained jurisdiction, ordered, "That certain controlling,

regulating and measuring devices shall be placed in the Jordan River, in order to properly regulate the flow of water in said river, so that the various parties may draw therefrom with substantial accuracy, the quantity of water to which they are respectively entitled, under the original decree entered in this cause." Said order was entered by the District Court of Salt Lake County on February 13, 1914, (R. 158-163) ; and it was reviewed and affirmed by this court. *Salt Lake City v. Utah & Salt Lake Canal Company*, 43 Utah 591, 137 P. 638. Such devices were constructed in 1914 in the Jordan River at the Jordan Narrows as ordered by said court and in accordance with the plans and specifications recommended by the commissioner and approved by the court.

Defendants claim under their counterclaims that said facilities at the Jordan Narrows have been maintained and operated by plaintiffs in violation of Compromise Agreement (R. 102-103, 126-127). It will be remembered, however, that the construction of these installations was ordered by the court and, since their installation to the present time, they have been continuously under the control of and operated by either a commissioner appointed by the court or a water commissioner appointed by the state engineer. Such operations have been carried on for nearly forty years with full knowledge of and without protest by defendants or the Utah Lake Commission ; nor has any action been instituted by defendants to prevent the use or affect the operation of said facilities, until the filing of their counterclaims in the present suit. Plaintiffs have pleaded as defenses to said counterclaims that the defendants are now estopped and

barred by laches to contend that these facilities in any way invade their rights (R. 172-175, 183-185). Upon motion of defendants, however, the trial court has stricken the defenses of estoppel and laches (R. 205).

*General Adjudication of Water Rights in Utah Lake,
Jordan River and Their Tributaries*

In the year 1936, Salt Lake City, et al., commenced an action in the District Court of Salt Lake County against approximately 2,430 defendants to quiet title to the use of the waters of Utah Lake, Jordan River and their tributaries. As a result of the proceedings had in that case, the Supreme Court held that the trial court must proceed with a general adjudication of all the rights to the use of the waters of said lake and river, and their tributaries, in the manner provided by Chapter 4, Title 100, R. S. U. 1933, and amendments thereto, (Chapter 4, Title 73, Utah Code Annotated 1953). *Salt Lake City v. Anderson*, 106, Utah 350, 148 P. (2d) 346. The case was remanded to the district for such purpose and on September 1, 1944, said court entered its order decreeing a statutory adjudication (R. 150-151). Said action is still pending.

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