1954

## Salt Lake City v. Utah Lake Farmers Association : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

Plaintiffs do not allege nor do they contend that these defendants were parties to the proceedings they rely upon. None of the defendants were parties and no order issued as a result of such proceedings could be binding as against these defendants. **Tanner vs. Provo Reservoir Co.**, 78 Utah 158; 2 P. 2d 107. In that case it was held that a decree was not binding upon one who was not a party to the action, either directly or through his predecessor, even though he might be interested in the subject matter thereof. Moreover, the plaintiffs do not allege nor anywhere contend that the dam in question cannot be used as an impounding device to hold back the waters in Utah Lake. The fact is that the dam in question is so designed that it can, by a simple adjustment to the gates, stop the flow of the river, and that carries with it the power to cut down or retard the flow of



the river. Even though the dam structure itself, when the gates are properly open, may be harmless to these defendants, it would indeed be anomalous to hold that these defendants are precluded by a court order in a proceeding to which they were not parties or bound, from raising the question of improper operation of dam to the defendants' great damage. The compromise agreement preserves the right of the defendants to bring any suits against the plaintiffs or any of them for any future violations of the agreement or of the decree in the Colladge case. **Salt Lake City v. Colladge, 13 Utah 522, 45 Pac. 891.**

Plaintiffs assert that they have the right to flow defendants' land up to compromise elevation at all times, irrespective of the source of water, and in support of their position quote one sentence from compromise agreement (Plaintiffs' Brief, page 24). The next sentence of the agreement shows the limited application of the sentence quoted by plaintiffs. It provides as follows:

“Also the right in addition to the foregoing, free from liability or damage, to flow the lands of the parties of the first part, or either of them, to the extent which may be caused by placing obstructions in the water way in said dam hereinbefore mentioned **according to the limitation hereinafter specified** for the purpose of holding back or retarding the waters in Utah Lake at an elevation or height not to exceed 3 feet 3½ inches above the points heretofore established as low water mark in said lake (compromise)\*\*\*.” (1)

The sentence relied upon by plaintiffs gives them storage rights only to the extent that the waters of the Jordan River are retarded by the bottom of the dam as then con-

---

(1) Emphasis ours

structed, plus 6 inches (Compromise Agreement). In other words, under that provision plaintiffs were protected only if the Jordan River was permitted its almost then free flow. The subsequent sentence above set forth in this brief makes the question of whether other obstructions can be placed in the river dependent upon whether or not the fall of snow during the past winter has been heavy or light. (See Compromise agreement). Obviously, the agreement relative to snow fall contemplated only the natural drainage area of Utah Lake. It was not and could not have been in the contemplation of the parties that water from foreign watersheds would be brought into Utah Lake for storage, and that other waters or sources of water, then unknown, would be tapped and stored in Utah Lake by the plaintiffs and others in privity with the plaintiffs. The grant of an easement contemplates the then known factors and uses only. Defendants are not seeking damages arising more than three years before the filing of the counterclaim, but we are primarily seeking to recover damages for 1952 and to prevent any recurrences of damages by unlawful flowage of defendants' lands in future years.

Plaintiffs make much of the fact that the distribution of the waters of Utah Lake and the Jordan River have been under the supervision of a commissioner appointed by the court in 1914, and later by a commissioner appointed by the State Engineer. The function of the Water Commission appointed by the court in 1914 in a proceeding to which these defendants were not parties, was stated by the court in **Salt Lake City, et al., vs. Salt Lake City Water and Electric Power Company, et al.**, 24 Utah 249; 67 P. 672, as follows:



“\*\*To superintend and direct the measurement and division of all water, distributed by this decree in accordance therewith; to direct and supervise and inspect all means and appliance for the diversion, conveyance, and use of the same,\*\*\*\*”.

The only responsibility of the Water Commission is to see that the claimants of the water receive, by accurate measurements, the waters awarded to them. The so-called “Morse Decree,” as pointed out in plaintiffs’ brief (pages 10 and 12), involved only the right of the users of water in Salt Lake County, and dealt only with the problem of the maintenance of some proper facility for measuring and distributing the waters as awarded under the decree. The compromise agreement and storage rights involving the interest of these defendants was not an issue in the proceedings. Moreover, these plaintiffs have neglected to point out to the Court that the Water Commissioner is also retained by the plaintiffs as a consulting engineer. The Water Commissioner has no right, by any authority whatever, in the exercise of his duties as such, to interfere with the flow of the river contrary to the provisions of the compromise agreement. Nor can these plaintiffs hide behind the Water Commissioner in the operation of a dam devised and built by them in the guise of a diversionary works but so installed and constituted that it can be used as an impounding dam, and the water taken by plaintiffs when they want it.

Finally, plaintiffs contend that the Jordan River is a natural channel, and that the right to remove natural obstacles therefrom is vested in the Board of County Commissioners. Plaintiffs thus seek refuge in a statutory provision giving County Commissioners a power to do something if the Commission desires to exercise it. There is nothing

mandatory in the language quoted, nor can it be assumed therefrom that power to remove natural obstacles is limited to the county. It should also be noted that the power granted to counties is only exercisable in connection with "natural" obstacles. Defendants complain not only about slides that have been permitted to retard the flow of the river which might be called "natural" obstacles, but defendants also complain about obstacles and changes attributable directly to the efforts of the plaintiffs. The plain fact of the matter is, as the evidence will show, these plaintiffs have taken over the Jordan River as completely as they could if it were a private channel. They have, without consulting anyone, placed dams and obstructions as they saw fit; they have changed the natural course of the river as they desired; they have left the old Indian Ford Dam, except the superstructure thereof, in the river; they have set up pumping apparatus as fit their whims, they have elevated gauge heights which were designed to show the level of the lake in relation to compromise; they have removed obstructions that it suited their purpose to remove and have left others that it suited their purposes to leave. The plaintiffs dredged the river and then claimed and secured the right to increase the dam height. That increase carries with it the duty on the part of the plaintiffs to see that the river does at all times carry the water it purportedly carried at the time they secured the rights to raise the level of their dam.

It is understandable that the plaintiffs would like to have the counterclaim dismissed on some alleged technicality. However, as determined by the trial judge, these conjectures of the plaintiffs do not furnish basis for such dismissal, and the counterclaim should be heard by the

Court and a determination should then be made upon the merits of the evidence.

## POINT 2

Plaintiff claims that the trial court erred in striking their third and fourth defenses to the counterclaim.

The third defense is premised upon the fact that the so-called "diversion works" in the Jordan Narrows were installed pursuant to a decree of the District Court for Salt Lake County entered February 13, 1914. As heretofore pointed out, none of these defendants were parties to the proceeding in question, and could not be bound by any decision therein rendered. **Tanner vs. Provo Reservoir Co.**, *supra*. The trial court so held, and the plaintiffs have not been able to cite any decided case or authority to bolster their claim. Plaintiffs' purported third defense does not state a defense by way of estoppel, or on any other basis.

The defendants are not dependent upon the Utah Lake and Jordan Dam Commission to protect their rights. The **Colladge case**, *supra*, expressly points out that the decree "Shall not in any way prevent the defendants or any of them from bringing any suits against the plaintiffs or any of them for any future violation of the terms of the said contract (Compromise Agreement) or of this decree." The claims of defendants are based upon violations of the compromise agreement.

The fourth defense, which the plaintiffs claim was erroneously stricken, appears to a claim of laches. Like estoppel, laches must be specifically pleaded. Plaintiffs pleaded mere conclusions. Plaintiffs cite no authority whatever for their contention.

## POINT 3

Under this point plaintiffs contend that the court erred in striking their fifth defense to the defendants' counterclaim. That defense claims a prescriptive right to flow the defendants' lands and again cites the Morse Decree—a proceeding to which none of the defendants were parties, as authority. The defense itself states that the lands have been flowed "at such times and under such conditions as specified and set forth under compromise agreement." In other words, they claim a prescriptive right to comply with compromise agreement. The plain fact is that the claimed defense just doesn't state a defense at all. A permissive use cannot mature into a right through adverse possession, nor can an adverse right be acquired if the claimed adverse use is of irregular or infrequent occurrence. **56 Am. Jur. 768 and 772.** Moreover, recovery for trespass is not barred because perchance there have been previous, long separated, trespasses.

## POINT 4

Plaintiffs argue that the counterclaims are not subject to determination and adjudication in this proceeding. It is their position that only the compromise elevation question can be considered, because on that question the rights of the parties will turn. That proposition is not the fact at all. Plaintiffs and defendants are in dispute over a difference in compromise level of between 6 and 7 inches over the surface of the lake. The defendants, however, have alleged in their counterclaims that the plaintiffs were responsible for the rise in the water of the lake to an elevation of several feet above compromise. Therefore, even if compromise point should be determined to be where plaintiffs claim it

is, there remains the question of the unlawful flooding by the plaintiffs in excess of that elevation. Hence the counterclaim is not contingent for its total failure or success upon the outcome of the compromise level question. This case is then clearly distinguishable from the authority cited by plaintiffs. Even though the Court holds that the counterclaims cannot be maintained as a class action upon the issue of damages, this would only make in order an amendment to enlarge the allegations as to class representation or an order that the additional numerous defendants be brought in personally, as the rules permit.

There can be no escape from the fact that defendants Provo City and the other named defendants are in this law suit in their own individual capacity, even though they may also be labeled, in addition, as representatives of a class. So far as Provo City is concerned, there can be no question but that the counterclaim is so stated as to entitle it to judgment upon default of the plaintiffs. Even if plaintiffs prevail in their principal action, the counterclaim here stated will not fall for that reason alone, as was the situation in **Fidelity & Casualty Company of New York v. Coffelt**, 11 Fed. Rules Dec, 443, cited as authority by the plaintiffs. Other authorities cited by plaintiff are not in point. **Taylor v. E. M. Royle Corp.**, a Utah case at 264 P. 2d 279, was a suit on a contract where recovery was allowed under quantum meruit, and where the court held that the defendants had not had an opportunity to meet the issue.

## POINT 5

Here plaintiffs attempt to avoid the impact of the counterclaim by the Utah Lake Farmers Association and individual defendants, except Provo City, by asserting that the



individual claims for damages cannot be determined or adjudicated in a class action. They rely upon **Nunnely et al. v. First Federal Bldg. & Loan Assoc. of Ogden, et al.**, 107 Utah 347, 154 P. 2d 620, 107 Utah 379, 159 P. 2d 141, a Utah case decided prior to the adoption of the New Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. That case permitted the plaintiffs therein, in effect, to proceed with their class action, or in representative form, up to a point where it became necessary to establish the validity of the individual claims. Then each individual claimant should be given an opportunity to come into the suit and claim the benefits thereof up to that point. Defendants in this case see no reason whatever why the same rationale should not apply in this instance, especially in view of the adoption of the New Rules. Even under the old practice it was decided in **Gray v. Defa**, 103 Utah 339, 135 P. 2d 251, that a counterclaim for ordinary relief was proper in declaratory judgment action.

## POINT 6

By their argument under this point plaintiffs assert that there are other additional indispensable parties to the adjudication of the counterclaim who are not necessary parties to the action instituted by plaintiffs. The arguments of plaintiffs are specious and with no particularity whatever, and are not supported by any authority whatever. Defendants are not required to join all joint-tort feasons in any event. If plaintiffs claim indispensable parties, they can bring them in. These defendants were not parties to any proceeding giving the Water Commissioner power or authority to regulate the flow of the Jordan River. Plaintiffs do not specify the additional parties whom they claim should be brought in. Their pleading is insufficient in that respect,



because it should specify particularly the names of those deemed by them to be indispensable, so that the Court could act upon the information so presented and make a specific order as to those particular parties. (See URCP 19).

#### POINT 7

This point raises the question as to whether the instant case involving alleged flooding of defendants' land by the plaintiffs in this action must be held in abeyance pending the outcome of a general adjudication proceeding. **Salt Lake City v. Anderson**, 106 Utah 350, 148 P. 2d 346. The issues are not even contended to be identical or inter-dependent. The Supreme Court of Utah, in **Mitchell vs. Spanish Fork Westfield Irrigation Company**, 265 P. 2d 1016, completely disposes of the question by holding that a general adjudication proceeding does not have the effect argued by the plaintiffs herein. Also, in **Smith v. District Court** supra, the question was decided adversely to plaintiffs' contention. There the Supreme Court held that a general adjudication suit pending was not a bar because other questions were involved and other relief sought which were not involved in the general adjudication proceeding.

#### POINT 8

The trial court did not err in striking portions from plaintiffs' answer to defendants' affidavit for preliminary injunction, for the reason that the matters therein stricken were not binding on these defendants, as has been previously herein pointed out. The matters stricken were redundant and absolutely immaterial as far as these defendants and the case is concerned. In any event, the point is now moot.

## POINT 9

Prior to the filing of the answers and counterclaims these defendants moved the trial court to dismiss plaintiffs' complaint for the reason that it failed to include indispensable parties parties, both plaintiff and defendant, and that the named defendants were not representative of the class, and for ther reasons. The trial court denied that motion. Defendants raised the problem in this appeal by their cross appeal on file herein.

Defendants take the position that if the Court should determine that the unnamed defendants are not entitled to have the damage question maintained as a class action, then the Court should also determine that the trial court erred in refusing to dismiss plaintiffs' complaint as requested by the named defendants. In such event the plaintiffs should be required to name all individuals concerned with the level of the water of Utah Lake so that they will have a standing in Court to counterclaim for declaratory, injunctive and other relief, including damages, arising from the flooding of their lands.

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